
 801 T Street 
Sacramento, CA 95811 
www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.426.4262 
T 916.999.8700 
F 916.999.8701 
 

 

   

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Sutter Subbasin GSAs 

FROM: Leslie Dumas/Woodard & Curran 

DATE: September 25, 2020 

RE: Proposed Governance Structure for Sutter Subbasin GSP 

  

This memorandum documents the proposed governance structure for the Sutter Subbasin Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan (GSP). 

1. Agreement Type 

Recommend preparation of Memorandum of Understanding to memorialize the intent of the GSAs to 
collaborate and coordinate development and implementation of one GSP for the Sutter Subbasin 
(Subbasin). 

2. Coordination Committee 

The following is the recommended structure for the proposed coordination committee: 

Name: Sutter Subbasin Groundwater Management Coordination Committee (SSGMC) 

Board Composition: one SSGMC Committee Member per GSA and one alternate Member 

Officer Positions:  

 Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary 

 Elected by majority vote of the Management Committee 

Voting: 

 All actions decided by a simple majority vote with specific exceptions as noted below. 

 Unanimous vote required for any recommendation to a compromise or payment of any claim against 
the GSAs arising from GSP development and/or implementation  

 A 2/3 supermajority vote required for actions such as such as approval, modification, or 
amendment of the annual budget; adoption of rules, regulations, policies, bylaws, and procedures 
related to the GSP implementation; modification to Participation Percentages; entering into 
agreements with consultants; and decisions related to the limitation or curtailment of groundwater 
pumping initial and annual operating budget. 

 One GSA Representative or Alternate Representative is required to vote on behalf of their entity at 
the subcommittee level. If no GSA Representative or Alternate Representative is present, one 
individual working on a subcommittee on behalf of the Parties of a GSA votes on behalf of the 
GSA. Subcommittees report voting results and provide information to the Coordination Committee 
but are not entitled to make determinations or decisions that are binding on the Parties. 

1

ldumas
Inserted Text
C



   

Sutter Subbasin GSP (0011649) 2 Woodard & Curran, Inc. 
Proposed Governance Structure.docx  September 25, 2020 

Authorized Actions: 

 Setting policy or practices for the Coordination Agreement; 

 Making budget recommendations in conjunction with staff or consultant designated to manage 
the Coordination Agreement;  

 Determining the recommended basis for calculation of the Participation Percentages for each 
fiscal year, and the timing required for payments of obligations;  

 Employing consultants and otherwise authorizing expenditure of Activity Agreement funds 
within the parameters of the budget approved by the GSAs;  

 Developing and implementing guidelines, rules or regulations; and 

 Other actions deemed reasonably necessary or convenient to the purposes of the 
Coordination Agreement, including but not limited to appointing subcommittees, working 
groups or otherwise direct staff made available by the parties. 

3. Plan Administrator 

Need to identify a plan administrator for the GSP. This person is documents in the GSP and on the SGMA 
Portal. 

4. Inter-basin Coordination 

 Woodard & Curran participates in NCWA Sacramento Valley Groundwater Management Group 

 Develop subcommittee/working group to address specific inter-basin coordination and actions 
as needed. 

 Determine if inter-basin coordination agreements should be developed on a case-by-case basis. 

5. Meetings and Notification 

 Bi-weekly or monthly meetings 

 Notifications initially on Sutter County website; transition to GSP website once it is launched 

 Meeting agenda and materials distributed before-hand and posted on GSP website; meeting 
minutes prepared and distributed and posted on GSP website 

 Maintain meeting calendar on GSP website 

 All GSAs add links to GSP website on their individual websites. 

 

2

ldumas
Cross-Out

ldumas
Cross-Out

ldumas
Inserted Text
ed



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN SUTTER SUBBASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCIES 

FOR SUSTAINABLE GROUNWATER MANAGEMENT ACT SERVICES 
 
 
This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR THE SUTTER SUBBASIN GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT 
ACT SERVCES is made effective as of DATE (the “Effective Date”) by and between the Sutter County Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency (GSA), the Butte Water District GSA, the City of Live Oak GSA, the Sutter Extension Water 
District GSA, the Sutter Community Services District GSA, the City of Yuba City GSA, the Reclamation District 70 
GSA, the Reclamation District 1660 GSA, and the Reclamation District 1500 GSA. 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, on September 16, 2014 Governor Jerry Brown signed into law Senate Bills 1 168 and 1319 and 
Assembly Bill 1739, known collectively as the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act went into effect on January 1, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act seeks to provide sustainable management of groundwater basins, enhance local management of 
groundwater , establish minimum standards for sustainable groundwater management, and provide local 
groundwater agencies with the authority and the technical and financial assistance necessary to sustainably manage 
groundwater; and 
 
WHEREAS, each of the Parties overlie the Sutter Subbasin (Basin Number 5-21.62, Department of Water Resources 
Bulletin 118) within the Sacramento Valley Groundwater Basin, which has been designated as a medium-priority 
basin by DWR; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sutter County GSA elected to manage the groundwater over the boundaries of its members and act 
as the GSA pursuant to SGMA and notified DWR on or about April 11, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Butte Water District GSA elected to manage the groundwater over the boundaries of its members 
and act as the GSA pursuant to SGMA and notified DWR on or about October 1, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Live Oak GSA elected to manage the groundwater over the boundaries of the water district 
and act as the GSA pursuant to SGMA and notified DWR on or about November 24, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sutter Extension Water District GSA elected to manage the groundwater over the boundaries of the 
water district and act as the GSA pursuant to SGMA and notified DWR on or about October 27, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sutter Community Services District GSA elected to manage the groundwater over the boundaries of 
the water district and act as the GSA pursuant to SGMA and notified DWR on or about October 1, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Yuba City GSA elected to manage the groundwater over the boundaries of the water district 
and act as the GSA pursuant to SGMA and notified DWR on or about April 27, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Reclamation District 70 GSA elected to manage the groundwater over the boundaries of the water 
district and act as the GSA pursuant to SGMA and notified DWR on or about June 6, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Reclamation District 1660 GSA elected to manage the groundwater over the boundaries of the water 
district and act as the GSA pursuant to SGMA and notified DWR on or about June 6, 2017; and 
 

3



 

 

WHEREAS, the Reclamation District 1500 GSA elected to manage the groundwater over the boundaries of the water 
district and act as the GSA pursuant to SGMA and notified DWR on or about April 7, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, collectively, the boundaries of the Parties include all lands overlying the Basin;  
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire, through this Agreement, to coordinate the work of the GSAs and the management of 
the Basin, in accordance with SGMA; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties shall designate a point of contact for the Sutter Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
development, who shall communicate with all other Parties. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and conditions herein set forth, the Parties 
agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE  1: DEFINITIONS 
 
As used in this Agreement, unless the context requires otherwise, the meaning of the terms hereinafter set forth shall 
be as follows: 
 
1.1 "Agreement" shall mean this Memorandum of Understanding among the Sutter County GSA, the Butte Water 

District GSA, the City of Live Oak GSA, the Sutter Extension Water District GSA, the Sutter Community 
Services District GSA, the City of Yuba City GSA, the Reclamation District 70 GSA, the Reclamation District 
1660 GSA, and the Reclamation District 1500 GSA. 

 
1.2 "Basin" shall mean Sutter Groundwater Subbasin, California Department of Water Resources Basin No. 5-

21.62 as its boundaries may be modified from time to time in accordance with Cal. Water Code Section 
10722.2. 

 
1.3 "Coordination Agreement" shall mean a legal agreement adopted between two or more GSAs that provides 

the basis for intra-basin coordination of multiple GSPs within that basin pursuant to SGMA. 
 
1.4 "Coordination Committee" is defined in Article 4 of this Agreement. 
 
1.5 "DWR" shall mean the California Department of Water Resources. 
 
1.6 "Effective Date" shall mean the date on which the last Party executes this Agreement. 
 
1.7 "Groundwater Sustainability Agency" or "GSA" shall mean an agency enabled by SGMA to regulate a 

portion of the Basin cooperatively with all other Groundwater Sustainability Agencies in the Basin, in 
compliance with the terms and provisions of SGMA. 

 
1.8 "GSAs" shall mean the nine (9) GSAs in the Sutter Subbasin, namely the Sutter County GSA, the Butte Water 

District GSA, the City of Live Oak GSA, the Sutter Extension Water District GSA, the Sutter Community 
Services District GSA, the City of Yuba City GSA, the Reclamation District 70 GSA, the Reclamation District 
1660 GSA, and the Reclamation District 1500 GSA. 

 
1.9 “Groundwater Sustainability Plan" or "GSP" shall have the definition set forth in SGMA. 
 
1.10 “RD" shall mean the Reclamation District. 
 
1.11 "Notice" is defined in Section 4.2 of this Agreement. 

4



 

 

 
1.12 "Party" shall mean any of the signatories to this Agreement and "Parties" shall mean all of the signatories to 

this Agreement. 
 
1.13 "SGMA" or "Act" shall mean the Sustainable Groundwater Management  Act of 2014 and all regulations 

adopted under the legislation (SB 1168, SB 1319 and AB 1739) that collectively comprise the Act, as that 
legislation and those regulations may be amended from time to time. 

 
ARTICLE 2: KEY PRINCIPLES 

 
2.1 The Parties intend to work together in mutual cooperation to develop one GSP in compliance with SGMA for the 

sustainable management of groundwater for that portion of the Basin collectively underlying the boundaries of all 
of the Parties. 

 
2.2 The Parties intend to mutually cooperate to the extent possible to jointly implement the GSP within the Basin. 
 
2.3 To the extent the Parties are not successful at jointly implementing the GSP within the Basin, or to the extent 

that any Parties wishes to independently implement the GSP within its boundaries, a Party may implement the 
GSP within its boundaries, and agrees to work together with all Parties to coordinate such implementation in 
accordance with the requirements  of SGMA. 

 
2.4 The Parties expressly intend that this Agreement shall not limit or interfere with the right and authority of any 

Party over its own internal matters, including, but not limited to, a Party's legal rights to surface water supplies 
and assets, groundwater supplies and assets, facilities, operations, water management and water supply 
matters. The Parties make no commitments by entering into this Agreement to share or otherwise contribute 
their water supply assets as part of the development or implementation of a GSP. 

 
2.5 Nothing in this Agreement is intended to modify or limit the Parties' police powers, land use authorities, or any 

other authority. 
 
2.6 The Parties further intend through this Agreement to cooperate to obtain consulting, administrative, and 

management services needed to efficiently develop a GSP, to conduct outreach  to  other  basin  agencies  and  
private  parties,  and  to  identify  mechanisms  for  the management reasonably anticipated to be necessary for 
the purposes of this Agreement. 

 
2.7 Each of the Parties acknowledges that SGMA requires that the entire Basin must be managed under one or 

more GSPs for the basin to be deemed in compliance with SGMA, and that if multiple GSPs are adopted within 
the Basin the GSAs must coordinate, and are required to use the same data and consistent methodologies for 
certain required technical assumptions when developing a GSP. 

 
ARTICLE 3: PURPOSE AND POWERS 

 
3.1 Purpose of the Agreement. The purposes of this Agreement is to: 
 

a. Cooperatively carry out the purposes of SGMA; 
 

b. Provide for coordination among the Parties to develop and implement a GSP and/or facilitate a Coordination 
Agreement, to the extent necessary; 
 

c. Develop, adopt and implement a legally sufficient GSP covering those portions of the Basin that are within 
the jurisdictional boundaries of the Parties, subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement; 

5



 

 

 
d. Satisfy the requirements of SGMA for coordination among GSAs. 

 
3.2 Authority Under the Agreement. To the extent authorized by the Parties and subject to the limitations set forth 

in this Agreement and the limitations of all applicable laws, the Parties acting collectively shall have the following 
authority including, but not limited to, the power: 

 
a. To coordinate the implementation of SGMA among the Parties in accordance with this Agreement; 

 
b. To recommend the adoption of actions, rules, regulations, policies, and procedures related to the 

coordination of the Parties for purposes of implementation of SGMA; 
 

c. To perform all acts necessary or proper to carry out fully the purposes of this Agreement, and to exercise all 
other powers necessary and incidental to the implementation of the powers set forth herein. 

 
3.3 Powers Reserved to Parties. Each Party will retain the sole and absolute right, in its sole discretion, to: 
 

a. Be a GSA individually or collectively within the Party 's boundaries; 
 
b. Approve any portion, section or chapter of the GSP adopted by the Parties as applicable within the Party's 

boundaries; 
 
c. Exercise the authorities granted to each Party as a GSA under SGMA; 
 
d. Implement SGMA and any GSP adopted pursuant to this Agreement within its boundaries; 

 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, this Agreement does not provide any Party the authority 
to undertake any activities within the geographic or service area boundaries of any of other Party pursuant to the 
GSP developed or adopted hereunder, unless the Parties have formally and expressly consented and agreed in 
writing to the activity proposed. 
 
3.4 Term. This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and shall remain in effect until terminated in 

accordance with Article 7.3 of this Agreement. 
 
3.5 Role of Party Agencies. Each of the Parties agrees to undertake such additional proceedings or actions as may 

be necessary in order to carry out the terms and intent of this Agreement. The support of all Parties is required 
for the success of this Agreement. This support will involve the following types of actions: 

 
a. The Parties will provide support to a Coordination Committee and any third party facilitating the 

development of the GSP by making available staff time, information and facilities within available resources; 
 
b. Policy support shall be provided by the Parties to either approve, or respond quickly to, any 

recommendations made as to funding shares, operational decisions, and other policy areas; 
 
c. Contributions of public funds and of personnel, services, equipment or property may be made by any Parties 

for any of the purposes of this Agreement provided that no repayment will be made for such contributions. 
 
3.6 Other Officers and Employees. To the extent the Parties, or any third party facilitating the development of the 

GSP, need support from employees, officers, consultants or otherwise need to hire employees, the Parties may 
do the following: 

 

6



 

 

a. Provide that any employee of any Party with the express approval of that Party, may work on behalf of the 
Parties under this Agreement, and shall perform, the same various duties under the direction of the 
Coordination Committee as for his or her other employer in order to carry out this Agreement. This work 
may be completed and funded under the existing employment with one of the Parties. In the alternative, the 
Coordination Committee may recommend that the Parties to this Agreement enter into agreements to 
compensate, off-set costs, or otherwise fund the cost of the employment for work performed under this 
Agreement; 
 

b. The Parties shall collectively contract or hire consultants and/or employees to perform work under this 
Agreement. The Parties may designate one Party to administer the contract. For each contract that will 
require cost sharing amongst the parties, the proposed contract will be presented to the Coordination 
Committee for review, and each Party must approve the contract pursuant to that Party's approval 
requirements. Such contracts shall be drafted in a manner to reflect that consultants hired to perform work 
under this Agreement are working on behalf of all the Parties and will be expected to work with the Parties 
on a collective basis and with each Party on an individual basis. Such contracts shall be made to be 
enforceable by all applicable Parties. Additionally, the contracts must include appropriate indemnity, 
insurance, and non-disclosures to protect all Parties. Once approved, no expansion, addition, or change to 
an approved scope of work in a signed contract involving and increase or decrease in compensation under 
the contract can be made by the contract administrator until approved by each Party pursuant to that Party's 
approval requirements. 

 
ARTICLE 4: GOVERNANCE 

 
4.1 Coordination Committee. The activities under this Agreement will be guided by a Coordination Committee 

made up of up to one (1) representative from each of the Parties. The Coordination Committee shall work 
collaboratively under the terms of this Agreement to develop recommendations for the technical and substantive 
Basin-wide issues. These recommendations shall be reached by a simple majority vote of the Coordination 
Committee and submitted to each Party's governing board for final approval. The governing body of each Party 
must approve the recommendations of the Coordination Committee prior to them becoming effective. 

 
The Coordination Committee shall develop, but not be limited to, the following actions: 

 
a. budget(s) and appropriate cost sharing for any project or program that requires funding from the 

Parties; 
 

b. Propose guidance and options for obtaining grant funding; 
 

c. Recommend the adoption of rules, regulations, policies, and procedures related to the Agreement; 
 

d. Recommend the approval of any contracts with consultants or subcontractors that would undertake 
work on behalf of the Parties and/or relate to Basin-wide issues and,  if  applicable, recommend  the  
funding  that  each  Party  should  contribute towards the costs of such contracts;  

 
e. Report to the Parties respective governing boards when dispute resolution is needed to resolve an 

impasse or inability to make a consensus recommendation; 
 
f. Recommend action and/or approval of a GSP. 

 
4.2 Dispute Resolution. Should any controversy arise among or between the Parties concerning this Agreement, or 

the rights and duties of any Party under this Agreement, such a controversy shall be addressed as follows: 
 

7



 

 

a. Any Party may trigger the dispute resolution process by delivering, in writing to all Parties, a notification of a 
dispute or controversy that contains a specific description of the actions alleged to be contrary to this 
Agreement and a proposed solution ("Notice"). Within thirty (30) days after receipt of Notice, the Parties 
shall attempt in good faith to resolve the controversy through informal means. If the Parties cannot agree 
upon a resolution of the controversy within sixty (60) days from receipt of Notice, the dispute shall be 
submitted to mediation prior to the commencement of legal action. 

 
b. Mediation shall be no less than a full day (unless otherwise agreed upon by the Parties) and the cost of 

mediation shall be paid in equal proportion among the Parties. 
 

c. The mediator shall be either voluntarily agreed to, or, if the Parties cannot agree upon a mediator, selected 
by the method set forth in (i) or (ii) below: 

 
i. Each Party shall appoint one mediator in writing. At the next meeting of the Coordination 

Committee, one member shall randomly select the name of one mediator from a container 
containing the nine names submitted. 

 
ii. If the nine Parties do not voluntarily agree to in writing to the randomly selected mediator, then the 

mediator shall be appointed by the Superior Court upon motion for appointment of a neutral 
mediator. 

 
d. Should the mediation process described above not provide a final resolution to the controversy raised, any 

Party may pursue any judicial or administrative remedies otherwise available. However, notwithstanding this 
Section 4.2, a Party may seek a preliminary injunction or other interlocutory judicial relief prior to completion 
of the mediation if necessary to avoid irreparable damage or to preserve the status quo. 

  
ARTICLE 5: EXCHANGE OF DATA AND INFORMATION 

 
5.1 Exchange of Information. The Parties acknowledge and recognize pursuant to this Agreement and SGMA, 

the Parties will need to exchange information amongst and between the Parties and the Parties' 
consultants. 

 
5.2 Procedure for Exchange of Information. The Parties may exchange information through collaboration 

and/or informal requests made at the Coordination Committee level or through working/stakeholder 
subcommittees designated by the Coordination Committee. To the extent it is necessary to make a written 
request for information to other Parties, the following protocols shall be followed: Each of the Parties shall 
designate a representative to respond to information requests  and provide the name and contact 
information  of the designee to the Coordination Committee. Requests may be communicated in writing and 
transmitted in person or by mail, facsimile machine or other electronic means to the appropriate 
representative as named in this agreement. 

 
5.3 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

 
a. The Parties acknowledge that, in connection with their mutual activities under this Agreement, each 

of them may share sensitive and/or confidential information with the other Parties. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, including but not limited to the Public Records Act, California Government 
Code Section 6250 et seq., each of the Parties shall maintain any information, documents or 
materials shared by the other Parties or mutually developed pursuant this Agreement, in 
confidence, and shall not voluntarily provide or reveal such information, documents or materials to 
any third party. If any Party receives a request or order from a third party that the receiving Party 
believes requires it to disclose any such information, documents or materials, the receiving party 

8



 

 

shall (i) immediately notify the other Parties in writing and provide them with a copy of such request 
or order, (ii) defer any disclosure of such information, documents or material for as long as legally 
permitted and (iii) cooperate with any other Party that wishes to pursue an order preventing the 
disclosure of such information, documents or materials. 

 
b. The Parties further acknowledge and agree that, unless otherwise required by law, any documents, 

data or material designed as "DRAFT" that is shared with other Parties to this Agreement ( 1 ) shall 
remain confidential; (2) will not be made final or shared with third parties (other than employees or 
consultants of that Party with a need to know); and (3) shall be used only for the purposes set forth 
in this Agreement. 

 
c. If there is a breach or threatened breach of any provision of this Section 5.3, it is agreed and 

understood that the non-breaching Party shall have no adequate remedy in money or other 
damages and accordingly shall be entitled to injunctive relief; provided however, no specification in 
this Agreement of any particular remedy shall be construed as a waiver or prohibition of any other 
remedies in the event of a breach or threatened breach of this Agreement. 

 
5.4 Model(s). The Parties will collectively adopt a single water resources model for purposes of preparing the 

GSP. Any Party may utilize the model for investigative runs, however, only runs made with assumptions and 
changes approved by the Parties will be accepted as official for inclusion within the GSP. The approved 
model will be located at Sutter County until a future location is agreed upon by the Parties. All Parties shall 
receive copies of the model and shall have access to the model at Sutter County during normal business 
hours. 

 
ARTICLE 6: FINANCIAL PROVISIONS 

 
6.1 Contributions and Expenses. Each of the Parties shall be responsible to fund its participation in this 

Agreement. Funding outside costs, such as consultants, projects, or other Basin-wide activities shall be 
determined separately for each project. For any such Basin-wide project, the Coordination Committee shall 
develop a scope of work and recommended a cost allocation for each of the Parties that would need to be 
approved by a Party' s governing board before it is binding on that Party. With respect to sharing costs for 
GSP development, the Parties agree to the cost share allocation in EXHIBIT A, GSP Cost Share Allocation 
dated DATE. 

 
6.2 Funding Responsibilities. Each Party will be solely responsible for raising funds for payment of that 

Party's share of operating and administrative costs. The obligation of each of the Parties to make payments 
under the terms and provision of this Agreement is an individual and several obligation and not a joint 
obligation with those of the other Parties. Each of the Parties shall be individually responsible for its own 
covenants, obligations, and liabilities under this Agreement. No Party shall be precluded from independently 
pursuing any of the activities contemplated in this Agreement. No Party shall be the agent or have the right 
or power to bind any other Parties without such Party's express written consent, except as expressly 
provided in this Agreement. 

 
6.3 Alternate Funding Sources. The Parties may secure contributions of grant funding, state, federal, or other 

funding as funding or a portion of funding for projects between the Parties. 
 
  

9



 

 

ARTICLE  7: CHANGES IN PURPOSE, PARTICIPATION, WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 
  

7.1 Changes in Purpose. This Agreement shall remain in place and all applicable provisions shall remain in 
effect in the event the Parties determine it is not possible to develop a single GSP pursuant to this 
Agreement. In that instance, the Parties may  develop  separate, multiple GSPs, but agree that they will 
work together to amend this Agreement and utilize this Agreement and the Coordination Committee to meet 
the requirements of SGMA to utilize the same data and consistent methodologies as required by SGMA, 
coordinate implementation of the GPSs, and work together as necessary to comply with SGMA. Under 
those circumstances, this Agreement, as amended, shall constitute the Coordination Agreement required by 
SGMA. 

 
7.2 Noncompliance. In the event any Party (1) fails to comply with the terms of this Agreement, or (2) 

undertakes actions that conflict with or undermine the  compliance with SGMA and/or achieving sustainable 
groundwater management, as determined through mediation or by the Coordination Committee, the Party or 
Parties alleging non-compliance shall provide written notice summarizing the nature of lacking compliance. 
Further, the non-compliant Party agree to make best efforts to resolve or remedy any such non-compliance. 
Such actions may include, for example, failure to pay its agreed upon contributions when due; refusal to 
participate in GSA activities or to provide required monitoring of sustainability indicators; refusal to enforce 
controls as required by the GSP; refusal to implement any necessary actions as outlined by the approved 
GSP minimum thresholds that are likely to lead to "undesirable results" under SGMA. 

 
7.3 Withdrawal and Termination. 

 
a. A Party may, in its sole discretion, unilaterally withdraw from this Agreement, effective upon ninety 

(90) days prior written notice to the governing boards of the other Parties, provided that (1) the 
withdrawing Party will remain responsible for its proportionate share of any obligation or liability 
duly incurred while a Party to the Agreement and (2) the withdrawing Party agrees to take all 
actions after termination to remain in full compliance with SGMA. The withdrawing Parties will not 
be responsible for its proportional share of any future obligation or liability after the written notice of 
termination has been given to the governing boards of the other Parties. Thereafter, the 
withdrawing Party shall not be responsible for any obligations or liabilities incurred by the remaining 
Parties.  In the event the withdrawing Parties have any rights in any property or have incurred 
obligations, the Parties may not sell, lease or transfer such rights or be relieved of its obligations, 
except in accordance with a written agreement executed by it and the Parties. This Agreement 
shall remain in effect for the non-withdrawing parties after the withdrawal of a party. 

 
b. This Agreement may be tern1inated by unanimous written consent of all the Parties. Nothing in this 

Agreement shall prevent the Parties from entering into another coordination agreement. However, 
in the event of termination each of the Parties will remain responsible for its proportionate share of 
all debts, liabilities and obligations incurred prior to the effective date of termination. 

 
7.4 Disposition of Property Upon Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Coordination 

Committee shall recommend the Parties distribute the assets between the successor entity and the Parties 
in propo1tion to how the assets were provided. 

 
7.5 Use of Data. Upon withdrawal, any Party shall be entitled to use any data or other information developed 

during its time as a Party to the Agreement. Further, should a Party withdraw after completion of the GSP, 
the withdrawing Party shall be entitled to rely on and utilize the GSP for future implementation of SGMA 
within its boundaries. 

 
  

10



 

 

ARTICLE 8: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

8.1 Indemnification. 
 

a. Each of the Parties shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify the other Parties, and their agents, 
officers and employees, from and against any liability, claims, actions, costs, damages or losses of 
any kind, including death or injury to any person and/or damage to property arising out of the 
activities of the Agreement to the extent of their respective cost share allocation (as set forth in 
Exhibit "A"). 

 
b. The indemnification obligation set forth in Section 8.1.a shall exclude actions or claims alleged to 

have occurred in full, or in part , as a result of active negligence by any indemnified Party , its 
officers, agents or employees and except for actions or claims alleging dangerous conditions of 
public property that arise out of the acts or failure to act by the indemnified Party, its officers, 
agents or employees which are not created by an indemnifying Party. 

 
c. The indemnification provisions contain in this Section include, but are not limited to, violation of 

applicable law, ordinance, regulation or rule, including, where the claim, loss, damage, charge or 
expense was caused by deliberate, willful , or criminal acts of any Party, or any of their agents, 
officers, or employees or their performance under the terms of this Agreement. 

 
d. It is the intent of the Parties that where negligence or responsibility for injury or damages is 

determined to have been shared, principles of comparative negligence will be followed and each 
Party shall bear the proportionate cost of any loss, damage, expense and liability attributable to 
that Party 's negligence. 

 
e. Each Party shall establish procedures to notify the other Parties, where appropriate, of any claims, 

administrative actions or legal actions with respect to any of the matters described in this Section. 
The Parties shall cooperate in the defense of such actions brought by others with respect to the 
matters covered in this Agreement. 

 
f. These indemnification obligations of this Section shall continue beyond the Term of this Agreement 

as to any acts or omissions occurring during this Agreement. The duty to indemnify set forth herein 
shall extend only to that period of time prior to a Party's withdrawal. 

 
8.2 Liability Coordination Committee . Each Party must defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other 

Parties from the actions of their employees or agents taken within the scope of the authority of this 
Agreement. 

 
8.3 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended from time to time by a unanimous vote of the Parties' 

respective governing boards. 
 

8.4 Binding on Successors. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the rights and duties of the 
Parties may not be assigned or delegated without a unanimous vote by the Parties. Any approved 
assignment or delegation shall be consistent with the terms of any contracts, resolutions, indemnities and 
other obligations then in effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the 
successors and Assigns of the Parties hereto. 

 
8.5 Notice. Any notice or instrument required to be given or delivered under this Agreement may be made by : 

(a) depositing the same in any United States Post Office, postage prepaid, and shall be deemed to have 

11



 

 

been received at the expiration of 72 hours after its deposit in the United States Post Office; (b) transmission 
by facsimile copy to the addressee; (c) transmission by electronic mail; or (d) personal delivery, as follows: 

 
If to Sutter County Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 

 
Guadalupe Rivera  
Sutter County  
1130 Civic Center Blvd. 
Yuba City, CA 95993 
Phone: 530.822.7400  
Email: GRivrea@co.sutter.ca.us 

 
If to Butte Water District Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 

 
Mark Orme  
Butte Water District 
735 Virginia St 
Gridley, CA 95948 
Phone: 530.846.3100 
Email: MOrme@buttewater.net 

 
If to City of Live Oak Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 

 
Nicole Rosser  
City of Live Oak 
1129 D Street 
P.O. Box A  
Marysville, CA 95901 
Phone: 530.742.5982 
Email: NDelerio@yubasutterlaw.com 

 
If to Sutter Extension Water District Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 

 
Lynn Phillips  
Sutter Extension Water District 
4525 Franklin Rd. 
Yuba City, CA 95993 
Phone: 530.870.1712 
Email: LPhillips@sutterewd.com 

 
If to Sutter Community Services District Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 

 
Geri Goetzinger 
Sutter Community Services District 
P.O. Box 710 
Sutter, CA 95982 
Phone: 530.755.1733 
Email: Sutterwater@aol.com 

 
  

12



 

 

If to City of Yuba City Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 
 

William Jow 
Yuba City 
1201 Civic Center Blvd. 
Yuba City, CA 95993 
Phone: 530.822.4635 
Email: wjow@yubacity.net 

 
If to Reclamation District 70 Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 

 
Rebecca Smith 
Reclamation District 70 
621 Capitol Mall, 18th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Phone: 916.444.1000 
Email: rsmith@downeybrand.com 

 
If to Reclamation District 1660 Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 

 
Rebecca Smith 
Reclamation District 1660 
621 Capitol Mall, 18th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Phone: 916.444.1000 
Email: rsmith@downeybrand.com 

 
If to Reclamation District 1500 Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 

 
Max Sakato 
Reclamation District 1500 
P.O. Box 96 
Robbins, CA 95676 
Phone: 530.738.4423 
Email: mssak.70@gmail.com 

 
8.6 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the Parties in separate counterparts, each of which 

when so executed and delivered shall be an original. All such counterpai1s shall together constitute but 
one and the same instrument. 

 
8.7 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 
 
8.8 Severability. If one or more clauses, sentences, paragraphs or provisions of this Agreement are held to be 

unlawful, invalid or unenforceable, it is hereby agreed by the Parties that the remainder of the Agreement 
shall not be affected thereby. Such clauses, sentences, paragraphs or provisions shall be deemed 
reformed so as to be lawful, valid and enforced to the maximum extent possible. 

 
8.9 Headings. The paragraph headings used in this Agreement are intended for convenience only and shall 

not be used in interpreting this Agreement or in determining any of the rights or obligations of the Parties to 
this Agreement. 

 

13



 

 

8.10 Construction and Interpretation. This Agreement has been arrived at through negotiation and each of 
the Parties has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the terms of this Agreement. As a result, the normal 
rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Parties shall not apply in 
the construction or interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
8.11 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the Parties and supersedes 

all prior agreements and understandings, written or oral. This Agreement may only be amended by written 
instrument executed by all Parties. 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto execute this Agreement on the last date written beside each Party 
representative's signature. 
 
 
 
Sutter County Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
  
By:______________________________________________  Date:__________________________________ 
  
 
 
Name:___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Butte Water District Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
  
By:______________________________________________  Date:__________________________________ 
  
 
 
Name:___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
City of Live Oak Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
  
By:______________________________________________  Date:__________________________________ 
  
 
 
Name:___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
  

14



 

 

Sutter Extension Water District Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
  
By:______________________________________________  Date:__________________________________ 
  
 
 
Name:___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Sutter Community Services District Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
  
By:______________________________________________  Date:__________________________________ 
  
 
 
Name:___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
City of Yuba City Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
  
By:______________________________________________  Date:__________________________________ 
  
 
 
Name:___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Reclamation District 70 Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
  
By:______________________________________________  Date:__________________________________ 
  
 
 
Name:___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
  

15



 

 

Reclamation District 1660 Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
  
By:______________________________________________  Date:__________________________________ 
  
 
 
Name:___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Reclamation District 1500 Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
  
By:______________________________________________  Date:__________________________________ 
  
 
 
Name:___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

16



 801 T Street 
Sacramento California 95811 
www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.426.4262 
T 916.999.8700 
F 916.999.8701 
 

 

   

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Sutter Subbasin GSAs 

FROM: Leslie Dumas and Jim Blanke 

DATE: September 4, 2020 

RE: Data and Information Request for Sutter Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

  

As discussed during our kickoff meeting on September 2, 2020, Woodard & Curran is beginning 
preparation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the Sutter Subbasin. The first steps in 
preparing the GSP are to update the Subbasin’s hydrogeologic conceptual model (HCM) and 
groundwater flow model and to prepare the required historic, current and projected water budgets. To do 
so, we will need to collect critical data sets and information as detailed below. Some of the items below 
are not public record; therefore, unobtainable through conventional means. The more data you can 
provide, the more accurate and representative our results can be. 

Please provide data in original files (e.g. WORD, EXCEL, ArcInfo GIS) rather than PDFs if possible.  You 
should have received an invite to a TEAMS account one possible platform for uploading the data. If you 
prefer to use another platform (e.g. DropBox), please let me know. 

 

1. DATA REQUEST 

The following data (with sampling location, data collection dates, and all relevant reference points) are 
requested from the Sutter Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs): 

 Well coordinates (x, y, z) 

 C2VSim model files 

 Geologic & hydrogeologic data 

 Cross sections used in Alternative Plan 

 Geologic boring logs and well construction details 

 Aquifer test results 

 GIS files 
o GSA boundaries 
o Basin setting/plan area files (e.g., surface water bodies) 
o Geology, soils, and topography from Alternative Plan 
o Monitoring network 

o GDE mapping 

 Historic monitoring data for all sustainability parameters 

 Water quality database – specifically cation/anion, general chemistry 

 Groundwater levels – as frequent as collected 

 Annual Report data 

If the requested data set is not available, please indicate to us in an email as directed below. 

17



   

Sutter County (0011649.00) 2 Woodard & Curran, Inc. 
Data Request and Information for Sutter Subbasin GSP  September 4, 2020 

 

2. INFORMATION REQUEST 

The following information is requested from all Sutter Subbasin GSAs and their member agencies (as 
applicable): 

 Monitoring protocols and methods 

 GSA and stakeholder contact information 

 Templates and formats for documents (e.g., logos, agenda, announcements) 

 Identified projects and management actions 

 PDFs of reports used in Alternative Plan for hydrogeologic conceptual model 

 Model documentation used for Alternative Plan 

 Microsoft Word version of Alternative Plan 

 

3. DEADLINE AND TRANSFER INSTRUCTIONS 

Please upload the requested data and information items to the shared internet file location (Microsoft 
TEAMS) by September 18, 2020. Data and information to be transmitted may be uploaded by following 
the instructions below: 

Instructions for uploading data to Microsoft Teams: 

1. Visit the following link to be directed to the Sutter GSP file share site: 
https://teams.microsoft.com/_#/files/General?threadId=19%3Acd1fb592744442bebe4e4a8d4c
a0a542%40thread.tacv2&ctx=channel&context=Data%2520and%2520Information%2520Requ
est&rootfolder=%252Fsites%252FSutterCountyGSP%252FShared%2520Documents%252FG
eneral%252FData%2520and%2520Information%2520Request 

2. Log in to your Microsoft account (or create one) 

3. Either drag and drop selected files to upload within the Microsoft Teams window or select the 
“Upload” button along the top ribbon and navigate to select files designated for upload. 

When possible, please submit all data requests in EXCEL or a similar compatible electronic format. 
Documents/information requested may be provided in PDF, WORD, or GIS SHAPEFILES. 

If you have any questions regarding the data/information requested, content, format, data information 
uploads, etc., please contact Natalie Cochran at ncochran@woodardcurran.com or at 916-999-9774. 

18



 801 T Street 
Sacramento California 95811 
www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.426.4262 
T 916.999.8700 
F 916.999.8701 
 

 

   

Sutter Subbasin Website Outline 
The proposed format for the Sutter Subbasin SGMA/GSP website is the same general format as that 
used for the South American Groundwater Subbasin Website (http://sasbgroundwater.org/index.html), a 
website that Woodard & Curran constructed for that subbasin GSAs. The Sutter Subbasin SGMA/GSP 
website would be located at https://SutterSubbasin.org/.The website and its landing pages are outlined 
below with each landing page is described in more detail in sections below: 

Home Page 
 Overview of SGMA 
 Sutter Subbasin 
 GSA contact information 
 Governance structure information 
 GSP development schedule 

 
Outreach 

 Public Involvement in SGMA 
o Communication & Engagement Plan 

 Public Involvement in the Sutter Subbasin 
 
Meetings 

 GSA Board Meetings 
 GSP Working Group Meetings  
 Sutter Subbasin Public Meetings 

 
Resources 

 Public Comment Tool 
 Latest news  
 Reports and documents 
 FAQ and other outreach materials 
 SGMA and GSP Information links 
 Common acronyms 
 Draft documents 

 
Spanish Language Page 

 Home / Overview  
 Outreach 
 Meetings 
 Resources 

 
Punjabi Language Page 

 Home / Overview  
 Outreach 
 Meetings 
 Resources 

 
Contact Us 

 GSA Contact information  

19



   

Sutter Subbasin GSP 2 Woodard & Curran, Inc. 
Website Outline  September 25, 2020 

 
Member Login (for GSA Members) 

 My Activity Tracker 
 Comment Submittal  
 Mailing List  
 Reports 

A “Stay Connected” bar will be at the bottom of the Home, Outreach, Meetings, and Contact Us page to 
promote signups for the mailing list. The website will include calendars with links to meeting materials, a 
repository for relevant materials, and a function that allows for mass email distribution of materials such 
as meeting notices and monthly newsletters. 

20



Proposed List of SGMA Materials for Sutter Subbasin GSP Website 
 

Publication Title Author 
California’s Groundwater and the Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act 

DWR 

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act – State and Regional Water 
Board Basics 

SWRCB 

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act – Stakeholder Inclusion SWRCB 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act – Water Quality FAQs SWRCB 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act DWR 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA): Understanding the 
Law 

California Farm Bureau Federation 

California’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA): Surface 
Water Depletions 

California Farm Bureau Federation 

California’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA): Reduction 
in Storage 

California Farm Bureau Federation 

California’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA): Lowering 
Groundwater Levels 

California Farm Bureau Federation 

California’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA): 
Groundwater Hydrology 

California Farm Bureau Federation 

Measuring Human-Induced Land Subsidence from Space USGS 
 

21



Proposed Sutter Subbasin GSP Outline 
 
Executive Summary 
 
1.0 Introduction 
2.0 Plan Area 

2.1 Plan Area Description 
2.2 Land Use Elements 
2.3 Existing Water Resources Monitoring and Management Programs 
2.4 Existing and Planned Conjunctive Use Programs 
2.5 Plan Elements from CWC Section 10727.4 

3.0 Governance & Administration 
3.1 Agency Contact Information 
3.2 Northern & Central Delta-Mendota Region Groundwater Sustainability Agencies 
3.3 GSA Coordination and Governance 

4.0 Outreach and Communication 
4.1 Stakeholder Identification and Outreach 
4.2 Plan Development 
4.3 Outreach 

5.0 Basin Setting 
5.1 Overview 
5.2 Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model 

5.2.1 Regional Geologic and Structural Setting 
5.2.2 Geologic History 
5.2.3 Geologic Formations and Stratigraphy 
5.2.4 Faults and Structural Features 
5.2.5 Basin Boundaries 
5.2.6 Principal Aquifers and Aquitards 
5.2.7 Structural Properties and Restricted Groundwater Flow 
5.2.8 Water Quality 
5.2.9 Topography, Surface Water, Recharge and Imported Supplies 

5.3 Groundwater Conditions 
5.4 Water Budgets 

5.4.1 Historic 
5.4.2 Current 
5.4.3 Projected 

6.0 Sustainability Management Criteria 
6.1 Sustainability Goal 
6.2 Undesirable Results 
6.3 Minimum Thresholds 
6.4 Measurable Objectives 
6.5 Management Areas 

7.0 Sustainability Implementation 
7.1 Programs and Management Actions 
7.2 Monitoring 

8.0 Plan Implementation 
8.1 Reporting 
8.2 Financing 
8.3 Implementation Schedule 
8.4 Plan Update  

9.0 References  

22



ID Task
Mode

Name Duration Start Finish

1 Notice to Proceed 0 days Tue 7/14/20 Tue 7/14/20
2 1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION 405 days? Tue 7/14/20 Mon 1/31/22
3 1.1 Kick‐Off Meeting 1 day Wed 9/2/20 Wed 9/2/20
4 Deliverable: Kick‐off meeting roster, agenda, project 

summary, and proposed meeting schedule
0 days Wed 9/2/20 Wed 9/2/20

5 1.2 Project Management 23.45 mons Tue 7/14/20 Fri 4/29/22
6 Deliverables: Monthly invoices and progress reports 469 days Tue 7/14/20 Fri 4/29/22
7 1.3 Grant Management and Reporting 19.05 mons Mon 8/17/20 Mon 1/31/22
8 Deliverables: Quarterly Progrss Reports 327 days Thu 10/15/20 Sat 1/15/22
15 Deliverables: Draft and Final Project Close‐out Report 0 days Fri 4/15/22 Fri 4/15/22
16 2. STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION AND ENGAGEMENT 376 days? Mon 8/24/20 Mon 1/31/22
17 2.1 Stakeholder Communications and Engagement Plan 75 days Mon 8/24/20 Fri 12/4/20
18 Prepare Draft Plan 44 days Mon 8/24/20 Thu 10/22/20
19 Draft Plan Review 2 wks Mon 10/26/20 Fri 11/6/20
20 Deliverable: Stakeholder Communications and Engagement

Plan
1 mon Mon 11/9/20 Fri 12/4/20

21 2.2 Communications and Engagement Tool Development 70 days Mon 8/24/20 Fri 11/27/20

22 Deliverable: Stakeholder communications web tool 70 days Mon 8/24/20 Fri 11/27/20
23 Deliverable: GSP website 30 days Mon 8/24/20 Fri 10/2/20
24 Deliverable: List of stakeholders and interested parties 30 days Mon 8/24/20 Fri 10/2/20

25 2.3 GSA and Stakeholder Outreach and Coordination 
Meetings

368 days? Wed 9/2/20 Fri 1/28/22

26 Deliverables: Meeting notifications, meeting agendas, and 
meeting summaries

368 days Wed 9/2/20 Fri 1/28/22

27 Outreach Meeting 1 0 days Wed 9/2/20 Wed 9/2/20
28 Outreach Meeting 2 0 days Wed 9/23/20 Wed 9/23/20
29 Outreach Meeting 3 0 days Mon 10/12/20 Mon 10/12/20
30 Outreach Meeting 4 0 days Mon 11/9/20 Mon 11/9/20
31 Outreach Meeting 5 0 days Mon 12/14/20 Mon 12/14/20
32 Outreach Meeting 6 0 days Mon 1/11/21 Mon 1/11/21
33 Outreach Meeting 7 0 days Mon 2/8/21 Mon 2/8/21
34 Outreach Meeting 8 0 days Mon 3/8/21 Mon 3/8/21
35 Outreach Meeting 9 0 days Mon 4/12/21 Mon 4/12/21
36 Outreach Meeting 10 0 days Mon 5/10/21 Mon 5/10/21
37 Outreach Meeting 11 0 days Mon 6/14/21 Mon 6/14/21
38 Outreach Meeting 12 0 days Mon 7/12/21 Mon 7/12/21
39 Outreach Meeting 13 0 days Mon 8/9/21 Mon 8/9/21
40 Outreach Meeting 14 0 days Mon 9/13/21 Mon 9/13/21
41 Outreach Meeting 15 0 days Mon 10/11/21 Mon 10/11/21
42 Outreach Meeting 16 0 days Mon 11/8/21 Mon 11/8/21
43 Outreach Meeting 17 0 days Mon 12/13/21 Mon 12/13/21
44 Outreach Meeting 18 0 days Mon 1/10/22 Mon 1/10/22
45 2.4 Inter‐Basin Coordination Meetings 262 days Thu 10/15/20 Mon 10/18/21
46 Inter‐Basin Coordination Meeting 1 1 day Thu 10/15/20 Thu 10/15/20
47 Deliverable: Agenda and minutes 1 day Fri 10/16/20 Fri 10/16/20
48 Inter‐Basin Coordination Meeting 2 0 days Thu 4/15/21 Thu 4/15/21
49 Deliverable: Agenda and minutes 0 days Fri 4/16/21 Fri 4/16/21
50 Inter‐Basin Coordination Meeting 3 1 day Fri 10/15/21 Fri 10/15/21
51 Deliverable: Agenda and minutes 0 days Mon 10/18/21 Mon 10/18/21
52 3. BASIN SETTING 95 days Wed 8/19/20 Wed 12/30/20
53 3.1 Physical Setting and Characteristics 80 days Mon 8/24/20 Mon 12/14/20
54 Deliverable: Draft Plan Area description 35 days Mon 8/24/20 Fri 10/9/20
55 Deliverable: Draft Current and Historical Groundwater 

Conditions description
35 days Mon 10/12/20 Fri 11/27/20

56 Public Workshop ‐ Intro to SGMA, Background, Basin 
Conditions

0 days Mon 12/14/20 Mon 12/14/20

57 3.2 Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model 95 days Wed 8/19/20 Wed 12/30/20

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
Qtr 4, 2020 Qtr 1, 2021 Qtr 2, 2021 Qtr 3, 2021 Qtr 4, 2021 Qtr 1, 2022

Critical

Critical Split

Task

Split

Milestone

Slippage

Summary

Project Summary

Rolled Up Critical

Rolled Up Critical Split

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

23



ID Task
Mode

Name Duration Start Finish

58 Deliverables: Three hydrogeologic cross‐sections 53 days Wed 8/19/20 Fri 10/30/20
59 Deliverable: Draft HCM narrative with associated tables 

and figures
73 days Fri 9/4/20 Tue 12/15/20

60 Public Workhop ‐ HCM, Definition of Undesirable Results, 
Intro to Model, Id of Possible P&MA

0 days Wed 12/30/20 Wed 12/30/20

61 4. GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT TOOL NEEDS 186 days Mon 9/7/20 Mon 5/24/21
62 4.1 Data Management System Development 160 days Tue 10/13/20 Mon 5/24/21
63 Deliverable: Web‐based DMS Model 8 mons Tue 10/13/20 Mon 5/24/21
64 4.2 Groundwater Model Refinement, Calibration and 

Simulations
170 days Mon 9/7/20 Fri 4/30/21

65 Data request for model files and updated information 10 days Mon 9/7/20 Fri 9/18/20

66 Refine historical model 35 days Mon 9/21/20 Fri 11/6/20
67 Calibrate historical model 45 days Mon 11/9/20 Fri 1/8/21
68 Develop current and future conditions 45 days Mon 12/28/20 Fri 2/26/21
69 Deliverable: Model files for historic, current, and future 

conditions
70 Develop scenario analyses 20 days Mon 3/1/21 Fri 3/26/21
71 Deliverable: Model files for scenarios analyses to assess 

projects and management actions
72 Draft model report 45 days Mon 3/1/21 Fri 4/30/21
73 Deliverable: Model Report
74 5. GSP Development 306 days Mon 11/30/20 Mon 1/31/22
75 5.1 Develop Water Budget and Sustainable Yield Subsections 50 days Mon 3/1/21 Fri 5/7/21

76 Deliverables: Written descriptions of water budget and 
sustainable yield

50 days Mon 3/1/21 Fri 5/7/21

77 5.2 Establish Monitoring Networks 50 days Mon 11/30/20 Fri 2/5/21
78 Deliverables: Written description of monitoring networks, 

objectives, protocols, representative monitoring, and data 
gaps

50 days Mon 11/30/20 Fri 2/5/21

79 5.3 Establish Sustainable Management Criteria 80 days Mon 2/8/21 Fri 5/28/21
80 Deliverable: Written description of sustainability goals 5 days Mon 2/8/21 Fri 2/12/21

81 Deliverable: Description of undesirable results, minimum 
thresholds, and measureable objectives

80 days Mon 2/8/21 Fri 5/28/21

82 5.4 Projects and Management Actions and Implementation 
Plan

65 days Mon 3/15/21 Mon 6/14/21

83 Deliverable: Description of projects and management 
actions

60 days Mon 3/15/21 Fri 6/4/21

84 Public Workshop ‐ Water Budgets, SMC, Implementation 0 days Mon 6/14/21 Mon 6/14/21

85 5.5 Compile Administrative Draft GSP 42 days Mon 6/7/21 Tue 8/3/21
86 Deliverable: Prepare Admin Draft GSP 20 days Mon 6/7/21 Fri 7/2/21
87 Review of Admin Draft GSP 20 days Mon 7/5/21 Fri 7/30/21
88 Deliverable: Compiled comments 2 days Mon 8/2/21 Tue 8/3/21
89 5.6 Provide Public Notice of Intent to Adopt Plan 45 days Mon 8/2/21 Sun 10/3/21
90 Prepare Public Draft GSP 25 days Mon 8/2/21 Fri 9/3/21
91 Public GSP Review Period 30 edays Fri 9/3/21 Sun 10/3/21
92 Public Workshop ‐ Draft GSP Presentation 0 days Fri 9/17/21 Fri 9/17/21
93 Deliverable: Issue Public Notice of Intent to Adopt the GSP 0 days Tue 8/10/21 Tue 8/10/21

94 5.7 Compile Final Draft GSP 25 days Mon 10/4/21 Fri 11/5/21
95 Deliverable: Final GSP for GSA Adoption 25 days Mon 10/4/21 Fri 11/5/21
96 5.8 Adoption of GSP by GSAs and Submit GSP to DWR 61 days Mon 11/8/21 Mon 1/31/22
97 Deliverable: Proof of Notice of Public Hearing by the GSAs 2 mons Mon 11/8/21 Fri 12/31/21

98 Deliverable: Submittal of adopted GSP to DWR 21 days Mon 1/3/22 Mon 1/31/22
99 GSP due to DWR 0 days Mon 1/31/22 Mon 1/31/22

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
Qtr 4, 2020 Qtr 1, 2021 Qtr 2, 2021 Qtr 3, 2021 Qtr 4, 2021 Qtr 1, 2022

Critical

Critical Split

Task

Split

Milestone

Slippage

Summary

Project Summary

Rolled Up Critical

Rolled Up Critical Split

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

24


	Blank Page



